West Midlands Birmingham Area

Birmingham

(G.06.4800) AIP database ID: {CD237017-C030-4E97-B7D3-ECAE20032C49} Parish: Ladywood Ward Postal Co 25-29 COMMERCIAL STREET 25-29 Commercial Street, Birmingham. Building Recording and Documentary Research

Hislop, M Edgbaston : Birmingham Archaeology, 2007, 40pp, colour pls, figs, refs

Work undertaken by: Birmingham Archaeology

The study area, together with the adjacent No. 31 Commercial Street, appeared to have been developed as a saw mill and timber yard c.1862. Amongst the principal components of the complex was a late 19th century sawmill building, in existence by 1888, and possibly to be identified with some of the additions made to the works in 1878 and 1882. The ground storey of this building was open to the north, south and east, the west side forming the boundary with No. 31 and containing blocked carriage and pedestrian entrances. The other main building was the street range of 1899, a mainly three-storey structure of open-plan shopping and first-floor office, designed by the Birmingham architect, G.R. Faulkner. At the east end of this building was a small cellar with early concrete ceiling reminiscent of contemporary construction techniques recorded in 2006 at the former Adamant Works at Nos. 37-45 Commercial Street. [Au(abr)]

Archaeological periods represented: MO, PM

OASIS ID :birmingh2-28359

(G.06.4801)

AIP database ID: {7807E901-623F-4836-A91E-9B70DB79ED68} Parish: Ladywood Ward

QUEENS HOSPITAL BUILDINGS, BATH ROW, EDGBASTON

Queens Hospital Buildings, Bath Row, Edgbaston, Birmingham. Historic Building Assessment Hewitson, C Edgbaston : Birmingham Archaeology, 2007, 28pp, colour pls, figs, refs Work undertaken by: Birmingham Archaeology

A historic building assessment of the surviving Grade II Listed Buildings of the former Queen's Hospital was conducted. Two buildings were assessed, the earlier of which, Block K, was originally built in 1841 as a purpose built hospital of three storeys over basements, extended to the rear in the 1870s. The other building, Block J, was a two-storey, purpose built hospital extension of 1873, built in Italianate style by the Birmingham architect J H Chamberlain. Both buildings were found to retain elements of their original plans but had been significantly altered internally to provide student accommodation. Building J retained its original roof structure and decorative wooden panelling at first floor level. [Au(abr)]

Archaeological periods represented: PM

OASIS ID :birmingh2-36392

(G.06.4802)

AIP database ID: {18307258-9903-4106-B499-46D2817A60F9} Parish: Nechells Ward

PLOTS 1, 1A, 13, 14, 22, 23, 26, 29, 30 AND THE CANAL SIDE ELEVATION OF PLOTS 30-32, EASTSIDE

An Archaeological Standing Building Survey Plots 1, 1a, 13, 14, 22, 23, 26, 29, 30 and the Canal Side Elevation of Plots 30-32, Eastside, Birmingham

Richads, G Leicester : University of Leicester Archaeological Services, 2007, 55pp, colour pls, figs, tabs, refs

SP06408632

Postal Code: B1 1RH

SP06208600

SP07808700

Postal Code: B5 5RH

Postal Code: B15 2DD

Archaeological Investigations Project 2007

Version 4.1

SP17009200

Postal Code: B76 9BG

Work undertaken by: University of Leicester Archaeological Services

A survey was carried out on the buildings at the site after a desk-based assessment had identified them as being of some archaeological importance. A variety of buildings were surveyed, the majority of which were mid to late Victorian in date, the "boom time" for industrial Birmingham. Closer examination revealed that some earlier buildings had survived, incorporated into the fabric of later buildings. As a group, the buildings represented the industrial development and decline of Birmingham. [Au(adp)]

Archaeological periods represented: PM

OASIS ID :no

(G.06.4803)

AIP database ID: {6112A59D-FAB1-4326-8F7D-BA00DA937403}

Parish: Sutton New Hall Ward

MINWORTH SEWAGE TREATMENT WORKS, BIRMINGHAM

Minworth Sewage Treatment Works, Birmingham. Building Survey Report Johnson, P Barnard Castle : Northern Archaeological Associates, 2007, 29pp, colour pls, figs, tabs. refs

Work undertaken by: Northern Archaeological Associates

Nine 20th century structures were recorded during the exercise, one of which was a temporary structure. The structures were associated with the operation of the treatment works and the general needs of its personnel. [Au(adp)]

Archaeological periods represented: MO

OASIS ID :no

Bromsgrove

(G.06.4804)

AIP database ID: {D4D49ED5-9B22-4A96-9FBB-0767F2C0111C} Parish: Wythall

THE DELL, THE FORDROUGH, SOLIHULL

The Dell, The Fordrough, Solihull. Standing Building Recording

The Environmental Dimension Partnership Cirencester : The Environmental Dimension Partnership, 2007, 51pp, colour pls, figs, tabs, refs

Work undertaken by: The Environmental Dimension Partnership

The available evidence indicated that the building dated from the late 18th or early 19th century, and was probably for the focus of an agricultural small-holding. The building had undergone significant improvements in the 19th and especially 20th centuries. [Au(adp)]

Archaeological periods represented: PM

OASIS ID :no

Dudley

(G.06.4805)

AIP database ID: {EBAA49E8-B6E1-4DEB-9B7F-DE40EBCFFE9F} Parish: Amblecote Ward

112 HIGH STREET, AMBLECOTE, STOURBRIDGE

112 High Street, Amblecote, Stourbridge, West Midlands. Historic Building Record Tyler, R Edgbaston : Birmingham Archaeology, 2007, 34pp, colour pls, figs

Work undertaken by: Birmingham Archaeology

An archaeological building recording was carried out and revealed that the building retained historic fabric dating to the 18th century. Radical changes were made to the building during the 19th and 20th century. [Au(adp)]

SP09457825

Postal Code: B90 1HZ

SO89808520

Postal Code: DY8 4HR

SMR primary record number: 157 *Archaeological periods represented:* PM

OASIS ID :no

(G.06.4806) SO96108390 AIP database ID: {17C6FF75-F62F-4EDD-9BB2-83F233E00B01} Parish: Belle Vale Ward Postal Code: B63 3UN JAMES GROVE & SONS, BLOOMFIELD WORKS STOURBRIDGE ROAD, HALESOWEN

James Grove & Sons, Bloomfield Works Stourbridge Road, Halesowen, West Midlands, Historic Building Record and Ornamental Audit

Tyler, R Edgbaston : Birmingham Archaeology, 2007, 46pp, colour pls, figs, refs

Work undertaken by: Birmingham Archaeology

A programme of historic building recording and an ornamental audit was carried out at the surviving office block of the former Bloomfield Works of James Grove and Sons Ltd., button manufacturers. The street elevation in particular was recorded in detail including the animal head motifs at the head of the applied brick pilasters which articulate the elevation. The structure as recorded represented an interesting though unremarkable example of an early 20th century office building. The recent demolition of the remainder of the associated factory complex had served to remove the building almost completely from its historical context, and to reduce the contribution it formerly made to its contemporary streetscape. The building has lost its original exterior fenestration and an elaborate entrance porch, illustrated on original architect's drawings. Internally, however, the building was found to survive much as built, and retained a high proportion of original fittings including carpentry detailing and brass door furniture. [Au(abr)]

Archaeological periods represented: PM

OASIS ID :birmingh2-28170

(G.06.4807) SO90299199
AIP database ID: {DA65D739-3B2E-4009-A7D1-B053B2D390FD}
Parish: Gornal Ward Postal Code: DY3 3BS
STRAITS HOUSE, TENNYSON ROAD, LOWER GORNAL, DUDLEY
Straits House, Tennyson Road, Lower Gornal, Dudley, West Midlands. An Ornamental Audit and Building Record
Hislop, M Edgbaston : Birmingham Archaeology, 2007, 22pp, colour pls, figs, refs
Work undertaken by: Birmingham Archaeology
An ornamental audit and building record was made of Straits House, a former house, latterly a public house, dating from around 1820-30. The work was occasioned by a condition attached to planning

house, dating from around 1820-30. The work was occasioned by a condition attached to planning permission to demolish part of the building and to convert the main element to residential apartments. The exercise recorded a significant Regency period gentleman's residence, which had been substantially altered during its time as a public house, including an unsightly extension, and internal remodelling, but which nevertheless retained a good deal of its original character, including the ornamental stucco treatment, the bow windows, and small-pane sashes. Original features to have survived internally include moulded window and door architraves, window shutters, plaster cornices, the principal staircase (lately vandalised). [Au]

Archaeological periods represented: PM

OASIS ID :birmingh2-31636

(G.06.4808)SO88908770AIP database ID: {44B2F717-DF74-48FD-9D15-E265682CF2D4}Postal Code: DY6 9PGParish: Kingswinford South WardPostal Code: DY6 9PGWORDSLEY HOSPITAL, STREAM ROAD, STOURBRIDGEPostal Code: DY6 9PG

Archaeological Investigations Project 2007

Version 4.1

Wordsley Hospital, Stream Road, Stourbridge, West Midlands. Historic Building Recording Hislop, M, Kelleher, S & Lobb, M Edgbaston : Birmingham Archaeology, 2007, 89pp, colour pls, figs, refs

Work undertaken by: Birmingham Archaeology

Building recording and an ornamental audit was undertaken at Wordsley Hospital in advance of demolition and redevelopment of the site. Wordsley Hospital was originally the Stourbridge Poor Law Union Workhouse. Three principal construction phases were included in the recording programme. Phase 1 was represented by the one surviving 19th century building (The Guardians' Boardroom) dating from c. 1874. Phase 2 comprised the bulk of the recorded buildings, which dated from a general rebuilding of the workhouse between 1903 and 1907 to the designs of Arthur Marshall of Nottingham, architect of workhouses at Wolverhampton and Nottingham. The surviving buildings from Phase 2 included the master's block and associated clock tower, the workshops, the stables, engine room/boiler house, maternity and nursery block, isolation block, nurses' centre, infirmary, and accommodation blocks. Phase 3 consisted of a series of annexe wards dating from c. 1940. The Phase 1 and 2 buildings were recorded to a standard commensurate with Level 3, and the Phase 3 buildings to Level 1. The buildings of 1903-07 displayed a good deal of uniformity of constructional detail being constructed of red brick, laid in Flemish bond, with blue brick plinths, sandstone ashlar dressings and hipped tiled roofs. The windows of the domestic areas were timber-framed single-pane vertical sashes with sandstone lintels and ills, resting on a course of chamfered blue brick. Fenestration consisted of horizontal sashes in the domestic areas and metal-framed multi-paned windows in the service areas. The interior retained brown glazed brick to midheight in the corridors, and bulhose brick surrounds to door and window openings. This uniformity of detail extended to Marshall's other workhouses at Nottingham and Wolverhampton, and the three complexes were also linked by a marked similarity of plan. [Au(adp)]

Archaeological periods represented: PM

OASIS ID :birmingh2-31573

(G.06.4809)

SO94109000

Postal Code: DY1 1QP

AIP database ID: {D67D4CB4-005C-4B63-BDB0-0CFF15D61A6D}

Parish: St James's Ward

SOUTH-WEST GATEWAY (OPPORTUNITY AREA 9), DUDLEY Desk-based Assessment and Building Recording of South-west Gateway (Opportunity Area 9), Dudley, West Midlands

Dalwood, H & Litherland, S Worcester : Worcestershire County Council Historic Environment & Archaeology Service, 2007, 69pp, pls, figs, tabs, refs

Work undertaken by: Worcestershire County Council Historic Environment & Archaeology Service An archaeological building recording and desk-based assessment was carried out at the site. The study area lies immediately west of St. Thomas Church, which stood close to the western edge of thetown on the main road through the town during the medieval and post-medieval period. In the 19th century, the built up area expanded to the south-west and north. A recording was made of the post-medieval church, mission hall and other buildings as well as the modern public house. [Au(adp)]

SMR primary record number: 168 *Archaeological periods represented:* MO, PM

OASIS ID :no

(G.06.4810) AIP database ID: {B49698C9-A696-4E5E-AD42-E9D1FDB372E9} SO89808470

Parish: Wollaston and Stourbridge Town Ward Postal Code: DY8 1UX LAND AT BRADLEY ROAD, STOURBRIDGE, STRUCTURES A AND B AT RASTRICK AND FOSTER'S OLD FOUNDRY

Justification for Demolition of Structures A and B at Rastrick and Foster's Old Foundry AC Cirencester : edp, The Environmental Dimension Partnership, 2007, 65pp, colour pls, figs *Work undertaken by:* edp, the Environmental Dimension Partnership

An archaeological building recording was carried out at the site of two structures located within the Stourbridge Branch Canal (Amblecote) Conservation Area. Both structures were located within the curtilage of a Listed Building and their original function was unknown. [Au(adp)]

SMR primary record number: 179 *Archaeological periods represented:* UD

OASIS ID :no

East Staffordshire

(G.06.4811)

AIP database ID: {A0B07C09-D4C9-49FB-B08A-2B9A476F6CEC} Parish: Rocester

MILL HOUSE, TUTBURY MILL, ROCESTER

Mill House, Tutbury Mill, Rocester. Historic Building Recording Kelleher, S Edgbaston : Birmingham Archaeology, 2007, 32pp, pls, colour pls, figs, refs *Work undertaken by*: Birmingham Archaeology

A recording was made of the early 19th-century mill. Mill House was used as the foreman's house at Tutbury Mill from at least the mid-19th century. Tutbury Mill was a site with a long history of the production and processing of textiles, and seven distinct and separate phases of construction were previously identified there. The mill complex contained structures built by, and associated with, Richard Arkwright, one of the key personalities and catalysts of the Industrial Revolution. It was found that the main block of the house, which was constructed in the late 18th/early 19th-century, retained some its original fixtures and fittings such as moulded cornices, skirting boards, fireplaces, and staircases. Further domestic quarters were added to the rear in the mid to late 19th-century, whilst subsequent additions and alterations were carried out during the 20th century. [Au(abr)]

Archaeological periods represented: PM

OASIS ID :birmingh2-28175

Sandwell

(G.06.4812) AIP database ID: {4E24793A-DC04-49EA-9D3F-31F51E1A1538} Parish: Cradley Heath and Old Hill Ward

Postal Code: B64 5AG

AS ROLLING MILLS, CRADLEY HEATH, SANDWELL

AS Rolling Mills, Cradley Heath, Sandwell, West Midlands. Historic Building Recording and Analysis

Lobb, MEdgbaston : Birmingham Archaeology, 2007, 47pp, colour pls, figs, tabs, refs

Work undertaken by: Birmingham Archaeology

Building recording at the site showed continued development from late 19th-century beginnings through to the late 20th century. The buildings surveyed were typical of their type and age, showing no particular architectural flair or significance, having been constructed for purely functional purposes. However, the continued usage of the site, and its constructional history, made it a prime example of the industrial development of this area of Cradley Heath and the Black Country during the 19th and 20th centuries. [Au]

Archaeological periods represented: PM

OASIS ID :birmingh2-36267

(G.06.4813)SP00408975AIP database ID: {E354A51A-9718-4ADC-9F40-C94BF0B93615}Postal Code: B66 1QGParish: St. Pauls WardPostal Code: B66 1QGBUILDINGCANDASSOCIATEDFEATURES,CHANCEBROTHERSGLASSWORKS, SMETHWICKCHANCE

SK11283923

Postal Code: ST14 5JY

SO94008581

Chance Brothers Glassworks, Smethwick, West Midlands, Historic Building Record, Building C and Associated Features

Tyler, R Edgbaston : Birmingham Archaeology, 2007, 44pp, colour pls, figs, refs Work undertaken by: Birmingham Archaeology An archaeological building recording was carried out at the site of BuildingC and its associated

features of the Chance Brothers Glassworks, West Midlands. [Au(adp)]

Archaeological periods represented: PM

OASIS ID :no

(G.06.4814) SP00408975 AIP database ID: {D8F37B9D-43F9-4EE2-9D56-D661755874B1} Parish: St. Pauls Ward Postal Code: B66 1QG BUILDINGS A, B, D, E & K, CHANCE BROTHERS GLASSWORKS, SMETHWICK Chance Brothers Glassworks, Smethwick, West Midlands. Historic Building Record, Buildings A, B, D, E & K.

Tyler, R Edgbaston : Birmingham Archaeology, 2007, 94pp, colour pls, figs, refs Work undertaken by: Birmingham Archaeology

A building recording was carried out at the site of the former Chance Brothers Glassworks, the Buildings A, B, D, E & K were recorded, all of which are Grade II statutory Listed Buildings. [Au(adp)]

Archaeological periods represented: PM

OASIS ID :no

(G.06.4815)

AIP database ID: {A123367E-6B94-45DC-8C3A-DCA4E80220F0} Postal Code: B66 1QG Parish: St. Pauls Ward

TUNNELS BETWEEN BUILDINGS A &B, CHANCE BROTHERS GLASSWORKS, **SMETHWICK**

Chance Brothers Glassworks, Smethwick, West Midlands, Historic Building Record, Tunnels between Buildings A & B. Interim Report

Tyler, R Edgbaston : Birmingham Archaeology, 2007, 26pp, colour pls, figs, refs Work undertaken by: Birmingham Archaeology

An archaeological building recording was carried out on site of the Chance Brothers Glassworks. This recorded the tunnels between Buildings A & B. [Au(adp)]

Archaeological periods represented: PM

OASIS ID :no

Solihull

(G.06.4816)

AIP database ID: {0C4C9872-79B4-4679-8A35-4B868769E0B1} Parish: Knowle Ward

GROVE FARM, KNOWLE, NEAR SOLIHULL

An Historic Building Survey of Grove Farm, Knowle, Near Solihull Nottingham : Trent & Peak Archaeological Unit, 2007, 19pp, colour pls, figs, refs, Sheppard, R CD

Work undertaken by: Trent & Peak Archaeological Unit

A survey of the farmhouse, including the original 17th century "cottage" part, was carried out. The new farmhouse was added in the mid 18th century, with ancillary buildings including an 18th century stable, a 19th century barn and an L-shaped dairy. A 19th century outhouse and coach house were also recorded. [Au(adp)]

Postal Code: B93 9LP

SP00408975

SP17707820

Archaeological periods represented: PM

OASIS ID :fieldsec1-32089

Walsall

(G.06.4817) AIP database ID: {01D5F516-DFE4-4D29-8B9D-24AF42891C03} Parish: St Matthew's Ward

37-38 BRADFORD STREET, WALSALL

37-38 Bradford Street, Walsall West Midlands. An Outline Architectural & Archaeological Assessment

Worcester : Mercian Archaeology and Historic Buildings, 2007, 26pp, pls, figs Morriss. RK Work undertaken by: Mercian Archaeology and Historic Buildings

An archaeological building recording was carried out at the site, which was built as a pair of semidetached houses along the newly formed street in the 1830s. [Au(adp)]

SMR primary record number: SRL7259 Archaeological periods represented: PM

OASIS ID :No

(G.06.4818)

AIP database ID: {BCAA2AAE-253F-46FD-96C4-982621B0C355} Parish: St Matthew's Ward

ELIAS CRAPPER'S SLIPPER BATHS, LITTLETON STREET, WALSALL Appendum Building Recording Investigation. Elias Crapper's Slipper Baths, Littleton Street, Walsall

Burton, R & Richmond, A Turvey : Phoenix Consulting, 2007, 21pp, colour pls, figs, tabs, refs Work undertaken by: Phoenix Consulting

An archaeological building recording was carried out at the site during demolition works. Evidence of three 19th century swimming baths were recorded along with a modern petrol tank. [Au(adp)]

SMR primary record number: SRL7274 Archaeological periods represented: PM, MO

OASIS ID :no

(G.06.4819) SP01359824 AIP database ID: {4A4FAEFE-E8DD-4BB6-8C29-C4B5220E06EF} Parish: St Matthew's Ward Postal Code: WS1 1PU SHANNON'S MILL, GEORGE STREET, WALSALL Shannon's Mill, George Street, Walsall. Historic Building Recording and Analysis Lobb, MEdgbaston : Birmingham Archaeology, 2007, 72pp, colour pls, figs, refs Work undertaken by: Birmingham Archaeology An archaeological building recording was carried out at the site in advance of the proposed conversion of the post-medieval factory to residential accommodation and commercial offices. [Au(adp)]

SMR primary record number: SRL7302 Archaeological periods represented: PM

OASIS ID :no

(G.06.4820) AIP database ID: {4782E456-7437-4C70-9BE5-5E86DA3A67C2}

SO96509830

SP01209890

Postal Code: WS2 8EE

SP0117298195

Postal Code: WS1 3QA

Parish: Willenhall South Ward

Version 4.1

Postal Code: WV13 2AN

SAMUEL PARKES & CO LTD., 82-94 NEW ROAD, WILLENHALL Building Recording Investigation. Samuel Parkes & Co Ltd., 82-94 New Road, Willenhall, West Midlands

Burton, M & Richmond, A Turvey : Phoenix Consulting, 2007, 95pp, pls, colour pls, figs, refs Work undertaken by: Phoenix Consulting

An archaeological building recording was made of the post-medieval factory and associated outbuildings. [Au(adp)]

SMR primary record number: SRL7262 Archaeological periods represented: PM

OASIS ID :no

Wolverhampton

(G.06.4821)

AIP database ID: {85C35611-F964-4B1D-97F9-76FF256CF754} Parish: Bilston East Ward

SO95309570

Postal Code: WV14 0TJ

BANKFIELD ROAD. BILSTON

Assessment of Buildings at Bankfield Road, Bilston, West Midlands

Mercian Archaeology & Historic Buildings Worcester : Mercian Archaeology and Historic Buildings, 2007, 32pp, colour pls, figs, tabs, refs

Work undertaken by: Mercian Archaeology and Historic Buildings

A historic building assessment of buildings was made of a modern chapel, air raid shelter and other modern buildings at the site in advance of proposed demolition works at the application site. [Au(adp)]

Archaeological periods represented: MO

OASIS ID :No

(G.06.4822)

SO9136297395 AIP database ID: {E4B92AD8-02FC-4675-8B47-F07CC60CF5E1} Parish: Blakenhall Ward Postal Code: WV2 4NA NIPHON WORKS. LOWER VILLIERS STREET, BLAKENHALL, **WOLVERHAMPTON**

Niphon Works, Lower Villiers Street, Blakenhall, Wolverhampton, West Midlands. Historic **Building Assessment**

Tyler, R Edgbaston : Birmingham Archaeology, 2007, 55pp, colour pls, figs, refs Work undertaken by: Birmingham Archaeology

The Niphon Works was established at the Lower Villiers Street site by Robert Stroud in c1865 and the surviving buildings represented a notably complete and relatively intact example of mid-late Victorian industrial complex. The principal western elevation onto Lower Villiers Street formed a focal point of the contemporary streetscape and represented an important link with the area's industrial heritage. The earlier, lesser ranges around the courtyard were more utilitarian in nature though they retained, to a significant degree, their original exterior appearance, structural alterations having been confined largely to the ground floor level. A characteristic and definable architectural vocabulary was used throughout, adding to the unified effect of the complex as a whole, which extended to a series of buildings further to the east, beyond the scope of the current study, but forming a part of the historical Niphon Works. Few original interior fittings and fixtures appear to have survived. [Au(abr)]

Archaeological periods represented: PM

OASIS ID :no

(G.06.4823)AIP database ID: {88CC13AE-4323-4972-A4D2-93EF7C4E4643} SO9115097973

Parish: Blakenhall Ward

Postal Code: WV2 4BX

SUNBEAMLAND WORKS, PAUL STREET, BLAKENHALL, WOLVERHAMPTON Sunbeamland Works, Paul Street, Blakenhall, Wolverhampton, West Midlands. Historic Building Record and Assessment

Tyler, R Edgbaston : Birmingham Archaeology, 2007, 113pp, pls, colour pls, figs, refs

Work undertaken by: Birmingham Archaeology

The historic building assessment comprised a programme of documentary research and an on-site recording of the standing buildings themselves. Companies owned by Edward Perry and Co. and John Marston and Co. Ltd. (Sunbeam) occupied the Paul Street works between 1835-1871 and 1871-1935 respectively. The buildings of the Sunbeamland Works were shown to retain elements of the historic development of the site from the mid-19th century down to the middle years of the 20th century. No part of the Edward Perry's original Japanning works survived above ground, though structures remained from the time when John Marston took over the works in 1871. The manufactory has undergone periodic refurbishment and sometimes radical alteration, the most drastic of which occurred in the 1930s, when a large section of the 19th-century fabric of the central block was demolished. The Sunbeamland Works represented one of the most important surviving monuments relating to the transport and motor heritage of the City of Wolverhampton. Despite having been removed to a considerable extent from its historical context by redevelopment of the immediate area duringthe later 20th-century, the Sunbeamland Works nonetheless remained a landmark building on one of the principal access corridors leading into the City centre. [Au(abr)]

Archaeological periods represented: PM

OASIS ID :no

(G.06.4824)

AIP database ID: {7D1DC698-3A60-427E-A6CD-3294D0786B6F} Parish: Bushbury South and Low Hill Ward

GOODYEAR TYRE FACTORY, WOLVERHAMPTON

Goodyear Tyre Factory, Wolverhampton. Historic Building Record Tyler, R Edgbaston : Birmingham Archaeology, 2007, 105pp, pls, colour pls, figs, refs

Work undertaken by: Birmingham Archaeology

A total of 20 buildings were examined, ranging in date from the early 20th century to the early 1990s, tracing the development of the factory site from its acquisition by Goodyear in the mid-1920s. The phasing of the site had been greatly enhanced by a series of dates design drawings and photographs held at the Wolverhampton Archives and Local Studies collection. A number of the recorded structures were found to be remnants of a former enamelware manufactory, established on the site by the Scottish company of Macfarlane and Robinson in the early years of the 20th century, and included a four-storey clock tower which is to be retained within the proposed development of the site. The site was chosen by Goodyear, when it decided to set up a British manufacturing plant in 1927, both for its central geographical location and due to the pre-existence of suitable factory buildings. Phases of rapid expansion were evident in the early years of Goodyear ownership, in the period following the Second World War, and again in the late 1960s and 1970s. The complex developed using a fairly repetitive, modular pattern of factory ranges, adopting what appeared to be a consistent site style. Expansion continued down to the recent past, with the latest recorded building dating to the middle 1990s, with the later buildings becoming increasingly utilitarian in nature. [Au(abr)]

Archaeological periods represented: PM

OASIS ID :birmingh2-36088

 (G.06.4825)
 SO9080598125,

 AIP database ID: {A766852F-8131-4937-B9F3-902A4CBB639E}
 SO9085098190

 Parish: Graiseley Ward
 Postal Code: WV3 0PE,

 WV3 0PL
 WV3 0PL

WULFRUNA COURT AND GRANGE COURT, DALE STREET, WOLVERHAMPTON

Building Recording at Wulfruna Court and Grange Court, Dale Street, Wolverhampton

SJ91500175

Postal Code: WV10 9EB

Cook, MTwickenham : Martin Cook, 2007, 34pp, colour pls, figs, refs Work undertaken by: Martin Cook An archaeological building recording was made of a modern building at the site in advance of proposed demolition of the two blocks of flats. [Au(adp)]

SMR primary record number: SRL7305 Archaeological periods represented: MO

> OASIS ID :martinco1-40520 Herefordshire

County of Herefordshire

SO50903990 (G.60.4826) AIP database ID: {CF4954B1-98E9-4703-84BF-BB5FA4BDD3FA} Parish: Hereford Postal Code: HR4 9AG NOS. 48 AND 49 BROAD STREET, HEREFORD Nos. 48 and 49 Broad Street, Hereford. History and Significance Reading, N Hereford : Reading Designs, 2007, 7pp, colour pls, figs, refs Work undertaken by: Reading Designs A survey was made of the late-16th century, three-storey, Grade II* Listed Buildings. This found that many original plaster features were intact. [Au(adp)]

OASIS ID :no Shropshire

North Shropshire

(G.39.4827)

AIP database ID: {D99B67C0-053D-4503-8CE8-BB5C516B7051} Parish: Moreton Corbet and Lee Brockhurst Postal Code: SY4 4ES MORETON SAWMILL, NEAR SHAWBURY Moreton Sawmill, near Shawbury, Shropshire. Historic Building Recording Castlering Archaeology Pontesbury : Castlering Archaeology, 2007, 23pp, colour pls, figs, refs Work undertaken by: Castlering Archaeology An archaeological building recording was carried out at the site and recorded aspects related to a medieval and later mill. [Au(adp)]

Archaeological periods represented: MD

OASIS ID :no

(G.39.4828)

AIP database ID: {47193C70-AB0D-4ECD-B794-69DEE1203992} Parish: Moreton Corbet and Lee Brockhurst Postal Code: SY4 5QG NORTH SHROPSHIRE HUNT KENNELS, LEE BROCKHURST North Shropshire Hunt Kennels, Lee Brockhurst. Level 2 Building Recording Frost, P Pontesbury : Castlering Archaeology, 2007, 26pp, colour pls, figs, refs Work undertaken by: Castlering Archaeology A building recording exercise recorded post-medieval kennels at North Shropshire Hunt Kennels, Lee Brockhurst. [Au(adp)]

Archaeological periods represented: PM

OASIS ID :no

SJ54792677

SJ57462270

(G.39.4829) SJ56901990 AIP database ID: {02580C74-BA8D-442A-8D2D-02FB183C4E67} Parish: Shawbury Postal Code: SY4 4JH WYTHERFORD HALL BARNS, NEAR SHAWBURY Wytherford Hall Barns, near Shawbury in the County of Shropshire, Archaeological & Architectural Appraisal King, MJ Shrewsbury : King Partnership, 2008, 15pp, colour pls, figs, refs Work undertaken by: King Partnership A level 2 historic building recording was carried out for Wytherford Hall barns near Shawsbury. [Au(adp)]

Archaeological periods represented: PM

Shrewsbury and Atcham

OASIS ID :no

(G.39.4830)	SJ4894212439
AIP database ID: {0CBF49E5-6FC1-4A5D-AA0E-25870FACAE30}	
Parish: Castlefields and Quarry Ward	Postal Code: SY1 1JQ
ST. JOHN'S CHURCH, ST. JOHN'S HILL, SHREWSBURY	
St. John's Church, St. John's Hill, Shrewsbury, Photographic Survey	y Prior to Commencement of
Works.	
Baart Harries Newall Chartered Architects Shewsbury : Baart Harries	Newall Chartered Architects,
2007, 21pp, colour pls	
Work undertaken by: Baart Harries Newall Chartered Architects	
A building recording was made of St. John's Church in Shrewsbury. [Au([adp)]
SMD min and north out 16711	

SMR primary record number: 16744 Archaeological periods represented: UD

> OASIS ID :no Staffordshire

East Staffordshire

(G.41.4831)

AIP database ID: {766F984E-AE0A-40A7-80D4-6ABD17459E03} Parish: Abbots Bromley

Postal Code: WS15 3DB

SK07882467

THE BAGOT ARMS, ABBOTS BROMLEY

The Bagot Arms, Abbots Bromley, Staffordshire, Historic Building Record

Tyler, R Edgbaston : Birmingham Archaeology, 2007, 28pp, colour pls, figs, refs

Work undertaken by: Birmingham Archaeology

A building survey of a post-medieval public house and outbuildings comprised a Level 1 record and consisted of a black and white negative and colour digital photographic record, supplemented by a summary written description and the generation of representative sketch elevations and sections based upon pre-existing survey drawings. No documentary research was undertaken as part of the current project, although a rapid map regression exercise proved useful in illuminating more recent changes to the buildings. Although recent use for storage and other uses has removed much of the original arrangements of the ranges, the opportunity was taken to record the overall layout of the buildings and what survived of the internal fixtures and fittings. [Au(abr)]

Archaeological periods represented: PM

OASIS ID :birmingh2-27983

SK0931333750

(G.41.4832)

AIP database ID: {90E0DCE4-6BC3-4595-9A06-AF98B22D5601} Parish: Uttoxeter THE WELLINGTON INN, HIGH STREET, UTTOXETER The Wellington Inn, High Street, Uttoxeter, Staffordshire. Desk-based Assessment and Historic **Building Evaluation**

Tyler, R Edgbaston : Birmingham Archaeology, 2007, 38pp, colour pls, figs, refs

Work undertaken by: Birmingham Archaeology

A building survey comprised a rapid visual appraisal of the site and buildings, and a summary written description supplemented by a colour digital photographic survey. A rapid map regression exercise of all Ordnance Survey editions for the development area proved useful in illuminating more recent changes to the buildings. The main block of the Wellington, fronting onto High Street, represented the earliest structure on the site, probably dating to the early 18th century. To the rear of the main block, were a series of extensions, mainly of 20th century date, although including a range of late 18th/early 19th century origin. The development site had the potential for below ground archaeological remains due to its location within an area of medieval and post-medieval activity. [Au(abr)]

Archaeological periods represented: PM, MO

OASIS ID :birmingh2-29060

South Staffordshire

(G.41.4833)

AIP database ID: {6A0CD8A1-D7BA-4982-A59B-4A3F328DAFDA} Parish: Brewood

GRANGE FARM, COVEN

Grange Farm, Coven. Historical Buildings Assessment

Simons, E Stourbridge : AOC Archaeology Group, 2007, 31pp, colour pls, figs Work undertaken by: AOC Archaeology Group

An archaeological building survey found that the house was a fine example of late 16th century framing which included elements of its roof and floor. There was a suggestion that the north wing was somewhat older than the south and may have contained an open hall. The house underwent numerous later phases of alteration and addition, most notably in the 19th century. [Au(abr)]

Archaeological periods represented: PM

OASIS ID :no

Stafford			
NEIIM	IS HIMA	wram	
Ocultor			

(G.41.4834)AIP database ID: {C20A3D3E-62FF-47A0-AD85-0E7C599D24F6} Parish: Checkley POWER TRANSMISSION AT TEAN HALL MILL

Archaeological Recording Power Transmission at Tean Hall Mill, Staffordshire, (Volume One, Volume 2)

Watson, S Ironbridge : Ironbridge Archaeology, 2007, 38pp, colour pls, figs, refs Work undertaken by: Ironbridge Archaeology

A recording was made of the power transmission mill at Tean Hall Mill in advance of a development for housing. [Au(adp)]

Archaeological periods represented: MO

OASIS ID :no

(G.41.4835) AIP database ID: {573B488D-0652-44F5-94D2-C7FD47F46EA6} SK00404840

SJ90900680

Postal Code: WV9 5EA

SK01003955

Postal Code: ST10 4EA

Postal Code: ST14 8DU

Postal Code: ST9 0AJ

Parish: Ipstones **CONSALL FLINT MILL, IPSTONES**

Archaeological Building Recording at Consall Flint Mill, Ipstones, Staffordshire

Stoke-on-Trent : Stoke-on-Trent Archaeology, 2007, 19pp, colour pls, figs, refs Sutherland, Z Work undertaken by: Stoke-on-Trent Archaeology

A building recording was made of the cellar of a flint mill. The remains of two flint grinding plans were recorded during the project as was evidence of structural modifications, some of which dated to its conversion from a slitting mill in the late 18th century. No conclusive evidence of power transmission for the flint mill was observed. [Au(abr)]

Archaeological periods represented: PM

OASIS ID :no

Stoke-on-Trent UA

(G.41.4836)

AIP database ID: {3A5B64D0-97E6-4036-A7DD-C12EDA8817AE} Parish: Burslem South Ward

SJ87504848

Postal Code: ST1 5JY

ST AUGUSTINE'S CARE HOME, COBRIDGE, STOKE-ON-TRENT Archaeological Building Recording at St. Augustine's Care Home, Cobridge Road, Stoke-on-Trent Sutherland, Z & Cleverdon, F Stoke-on-Trent : Stoke-on-Trent Archaeology, 2007, Spiral-bound

document with card and acetate cover. Sixty-three pages in total, including contents and appendix. Work undertaken by: Stoke-on-Trent Archaeology

A programme of archaeological building recording was undertaken at St Augustine's Care Home, Cobridge Road, Stoke-on-Trent (NGR SJ 8750 4848). St Augustine's was built in 1902 by the Little Sisters of the Poor as a care home for the aged poor. It continued in use as a care home for one hundred years, latterly under the management of Prime Life Ltd. Recently the building was used as a hostel for asylum seekers until its closure in 2004. The building recording identified a main east to west range with a wing at either end and a chapel at the rear. The project confirmed the chronological development of the building as is shown on the OS maps of 1899 to the present day. Some idea of the original layout and use of the individual rooms was also achieved. In the context of similar institutions of the time, St Augustine's seems to have offered relatively comfortable accommodation and, unsurprisingly, to have provided for spiritual as well as physical needs, possibly with a great deal of tolerance towards ron Catholic faiths. The later alterations that took place at St Augustine's concentrated upon the subdivision of rooms and illustrate an increased regard for residents' individuality and privacy. [OASIS(Au)]

SMR primary record number: 2007.LH.15, 1480675 Archaeological periods represented: MO

OASIS ID :stokeont2-41799

Telford and Wrekin UA

(G.41.4837) SJ68950330 AIP database ID: {56FA8FBA-3C7B-4A11-A4A2-7DF67689F57A} Parish: The Gorge Postal Code: TF7 5TW **BRICK WALL WITHIN LLOYDS COPPICE, MADELEY** Archaeological Investigations of a Brick Wall within Lloyds Coppice, Madeley Roper, SIronbridge : Ironbridge Archaeology, 2008, 9pp, colour pls, figs, refs Work undertaken by: Ironbridge Archaeology A survey was made of a post-medieval garden wall that had been declared unsafe, before any repair works were carried out. [Au(adp)]

Archaeological periods represented: PM

OASIS ID :no Stoke-on-Trent

Stoke-on-Trent UA

SJ87504848 (G.83.4838) AIP database ID: {93E525AA-14BF-4D5D-9B6B-7AFC86C177C3} Parish: Burslem South Ward Postal Code: ST1 5JY ST. AUGUSTINE'S CARE HOME, CORBRIDGE ROAD St. Augustine's Care Home, Corbridge Road, Stoke-on-Trent, Staffordshire Sutherland, Z & Cleverdon, F Stoke-on-Trent : Stoke-on-Trent Archaeology, 2007, 55pp, colour pls, figs, refs Work undertaken by: Stoke-on-Trent Archaeology A building recording was made of St. Augustine's, a care home built in 1902 by the Little Sisters of the Poor. It continued in use as a care home for 100 years until its recent use as a hostel. [Au(abr)]

Archaeological periods represented: MO

OASIS ID :no

(G.83.4839)

AIP database ID: {FFF1B47F-9C55-47F4-A1A2-423680AEAAE7} Parish: Hanley West and Shelton Ward

THE CALEDONIA POTTERY, SHELTON

Archaeological Building Recording at the Caledonia Pottery, Caledonia Road, Shelton, Stoke-on-Trent, Staffordshire

Stoke-on-Trent : Stoke-on-Trent Archaeology, 2007, 47pp, colour pls, figs, refs Sutherland, Z Work undertaken by: Stoke-on-Trent Archaeology

The building recording identified five buildings arranged around a courtyard, which varied in date from the late 19th century to the late 20th century. The Caledonia Pottery first appeared on the 1900 Ordnance Survey map of the area and by 1924 was a flint and stone mill. It continued to operate as a mill for raw material used within the pottery industry until at least 1961. [Au(abr)]

> OASIS ID :stokeont2-36137 Warwickshire

North Warwickshire

(G.44.4840) AIP database ID: {AF6DF652-4F85-46AB-AF24-E9F5312DD9FB} Postal Code: CV9 1AH Parish: Atherstone **178 LONG STREET. ATHERSTONE** An Historic Building Survey of 178 Long Street, Atherstone, Warwickshire Speed, G Leicester : University of Leicester Archaeological Services, 2007, 18pp, colour pls, figs, refs Work undertaken by: University of Leicester Archaeological Services The building subjected to the survey was originally a Quaker chapel, dating to c.1729. The survey was

requested due to the historic interest of the building. [Au(adp)]

Archaeological periods represented: PM

OASIS ID :universi1-26186

(G.44.4841) SP23389311 AIP database ID: {DDD39F7D-43C2-4439-A0EA-C31584C6F494} Postal Code: B46 2DX Parish: Nether Whitacre **CHURCH END FARM, NETHER WHITACRE**

SJ87594649

Postal Code: ST4 2DL

SP31209760

Church End Farm, Nether Whitacre. Historic Building Report

Meeson, B Tamworth : Bob Meeson, 2007, 26pp, colour pls, figs, tabs, refs *Work undertaken by*: Bob Meeson

Church End Farm contained several timbers that were originally part of a medieval cruck-framed hall house. The timbers were re-used in a 17th century timber-framed building. A threshing barn was built soon afterwards, along with a link including a covered wagonway. The house was remodelled in the Regency period, and again c.1970. Subsequent lack of maintenance left the building in urgent need of repair, and a substantial refurbishment was carried out. The highly significant elements of the medieval cruck-farmed building were potentially among the oldest remains of their kind in England. [Au(abr)]

SMR primary record number: 10358 Archaeological periods represented: MD, PM

OASIS ID :no

(G.44.4842)

Parish: Nether Whitacre

SP22529179

Postal Code: B46 2EG

THE COTTAGE, HOGGRILL'S END, NETHER WHITACRE

AIP database ID: {ADEFE915-45C4-4BF7-99BB-759337AABF03}

The Cottage, Hoggrill's End, Nether Whitacre, Warwickshire-Historic Building Survey and AnalysisMeeson, BTamworth : Bob Meeson, 2007, 12pp, figs

Work undertaken by: Bob Meeson

A historic building recording was carried out at the site of a timber framed cottage probably dating to the 17th century. [Au(adp)]

Archaeological periods represented: MD

OASIS ID :no

Rugby		
(G.44.4843)	SP50407670	
AIP database ID: {CB2450A5-63FA-4589-9A27-48ADA8EC5BFE}		
Parish: Brownsover South Ward	Postal Code: CV21 1NY	
LAND AT LEICESTER ROAD, RUGBY		
Land at Leicester Road, Rugby, Warwickshire. Phase 1 Building Assess	ment	
Wessex Archaeology Salisbury : Wessex Archaeology , 2007, 38pp, colour pls, figs, tabs, refs		
Work undertaken by: Wessex Archaeology		
The former BTH works occupying the site were considered to be an imp interest, having at one point employed 20000 local people. The function works spanned almost the entirety of the 20th century, however, site cla	al lifetime of the engineering	
that only one building out of nine had survived, a turbine factory. It was assessed that the importance of		
the buildings that had occupied the site lay in their function, not form, and as most had been destroyed		
the site was of little archaeological value. [Au(adp)]		
Archaeological periods represented: MO		

OASIS ID :no

Stratford on Avon

(G.44.4844) AIP database ID: {1026B5F2-BBB1-4B54-B175-CAA3D72D866A} Parish: Newbold Pacey SP2940056300

Postal Code: CV35 9DY

FLINT HALL FARM, NEWBOLD PACEY

Flint Hall Farm, Newbold Pacey: Archaeological Desk-based Assessment and Preliminary Buildings Assessment

McAree, D Northampton : Northamptonshire Archaeology, 2007, 64pp, colour pls, figs, tabs, refs, index

Work undertaken by: Northamptonshire Archaeology

An archaeological desk-based assessment and preliminary building assessment was carried out on a farmhouse and associated farm buildings at Flint Hall Farm. The farmhouse and some outbuildings date from the late 18th century with extensive additions and modification in the 19th century and the erection of modern steel frame buildings in the middle and late 20th century. There was no record of any early archaeological finds or features on the site. There was no evidence of any past use of the site, other than as agricultural land until the late 18th century. [Au(abr)]

Archaeological periods represented: MO, PM

OASIS ID :no

(G.44.4845)

AIP database ID: {E290B7AE-346D-441D-A642-383661AD5961} Parish: Tredington

SP24104330

Postal Code: CV36 4PE

MANOR FARM BARNS, BLACKWELL, TREDINGTON

Archaeological Recording at Manor Farm Barns, Blackwell, Tredington, Warwickshire Coutts, C Warwick : Warwickshire Museum Field Services, 2007, 38pp, colour pls, figs, tabs, refs

Work undertaken by: Warwickshire Museum Field Services

Archaeological building recording was carried out prior to the conversion of the barns into dwellings. One of the stone barns was an 18th century Grade II Listed Building, and others were shown on a map of 1754. Two sherds of Roman pottery were also found, suggesting a Roman presence on the site, which lay less than a kilometre from the Fosse Way. [Au(abr)]

Archaeological periods represented: MO, RO, PM

OASIS ID :no

Warwick

 (G.44.4846)
 SP27907230

 AIP database ID: {FF75CC77-2D33-4931-B0B8-50BDA6CBB515}
 Postal Code: CV8 1ND

 Parish: Kenilworth
 Postal Code: CV8 1ND

 LEICESTER'S GATEHOUSE, KENILWORTH CASTLE
 Archaeological Recording of the Bay Window, Leicester's Gatehouse, Kenilworth Castle, Warwickshire

 Coutts C & Lones R
 Warwick : Warwickshire Museum Field Services 2007 22nn colour pls

Coutts, C & Jones, R Warwick : Warwickshire Museum Field Services, 2007, 22pp, colour pls, figs, tabs, refs

Work undertaken by: Warwickshire Museum Field Services

Recording of a bay window located in the blocked passage of the Gatehouse, dating to the middle of the 17th century, was carried out. Prior to the panelled ceiling of the bay being removed it was surveyed and photographed, enabling it to be replaced after the rotting beam above had been repaired. A copper half-penny dated to 1799 was found embedded on the mortar on top of the beam, perhaps representing an episode of repair. A copper alloy furniture drop-handle dating to c.1680-1730 was also found during repair work. [Au(abr)]

Archaeological periods represented: PM, MD

OASIS ID :no

Warwick

(G.44.4847) AIP database ID: {A394EED7-016D-489C-8C1E-0022383FB701} Parish: Warwick SP28406470

Postal Code: CV34 4QX

WARWICK CASTLE COURTYARD

Archaeological Recording of New Entrance Pavilion in Warwick Castle Courtyard

Gethin, B & Palmer, S Warwick : Warwickshire Museum Field Services, 2007, 7pp, colour pls, figs, tabs, refs

Work undertaken by: Warwickshire Museum Field Services

Archaeological recording during the construction of a temporary pavilion revealed no significant archaeological features. The earliest layer encountered was probably associated with 19th century landscaping of the courtyard. It contained residual 12th to 18th century pottery and a yellow glazed medieval floor tile as well as 19th century material. [Au(abr)]

SMR primary record number: 21293 Archaeological periods represented: MD, PM, MO

OASIS ID :no Worcestershire

Malvern Hills

(G.93.4848) SO74346643 AIP database ID: {5A50742D-FE6A-4CCD-8AC0-EDE39F44CE61} Parish: Abberley Postal Code: WR6 6DD THE WALLED GARDEN, ABBERLEY HALL The Walled Garden, Abberley Hall, Worcestershire. Historic Building Recording Oakey, N Hereford : Archaeological Investigations Ltd., 2007, 36pp, colour pls, figs, tabs, refs Work undertaken by: Archaeological Investigations Ltd. A walled garden was recorded at Abberley Hall. [Au(adp)]

Archaeological periods represented: PM

OASIS ID :no

(G.93.4849) AIP database ID: {47857259-DC17-4192-860A-78AC7D138D8C}

Parish: Castlemorton FAIROAKS FARM, HOLLYBUSH

Historic Building at Fairoaks Farm, Hollybush, Worcestershire

Worcester : Mercian Archaeology, 2007, 19pp, colour pls, figs, tabs, refs Mercian Archaeology Work undertaken by: Mercian Archaeology

A survey was carried out at the site, comprising a range, granary, and machine house. This machine house made use of water power. [Au(adp)]

Archaeological periods represented: PM

OASIS ID :no

(G.93.4850) AIP database ID: {40F7C1AD-44C4-4428-80C0-E0A23A94CD80} Parish: Eastham LOWER BANK FARM, EASTHAM Historic Building Recording at Lower Bank Farm, Eastham, Worcestershire

Worcester : Mercian Archaeology, 2007, 29pp, colour pls, figs, tabs, refs Mercian Archaeology Work undertaken by: Mercian Archaeology

A photographic survey was carried out of the barn and shelter shed. It was thought that the barn was demolished to make way for the shed around 1850-60. [Au(adp)]

Archaeological periods represented: PM

Postal Code: HR8 1EU

SO76663784

SO6576767838

Postal Code: WR15 8NW

Archaeological Investigations Project 2007

Building Recording

OASIS ID :no

Version 4.1

(G.93.4851)

AIP database ID: {9B6BAB1C-B60F-41D5-A1FE-AE89860766CB} Parish: Hanley

COURT FARM, HANLEY CHILD, TENBURY

Historic Building Recording at Court Farm, Hanley Child, Tenbury, Worcestershire

Worcester : Worcestershire County Council Historic Environment & Archaeology MacHugh, G Service, 2007, 95pp, colour pls, figs, tabs, refs

Work undertaken by: Worcestershire County Council Historic Environment & Archaeology Service The buildings recorded in this survey consisted of a threshing barn, stable and animal sheds now enclosing a yard. The barn and stable appeared to predate the animal sheds and may have dated from the 17th century, but more probably were 18th century. The seven-bay barn retained roof trusses and bay divisions, a threshing floor and original square oak wattle panelling above red sandstone coursed rubblestone walls with two types of ventilation holes. Adaptations to the north wall and remaining metal fixtures may have related to a horse-powered threshing machine and housing. The stable was of similar construction without panelling. It contained a three-horse manger and hay chutes leading from an upper floor hayloft and a separate loose box with small tack room. The construction of the 19th century animal shed completed enclosure of the farmyard and the roof trusses were of King Post type with metal bolts between tie beam and post with some details of the animal stalls remaining. The adaptations and repairs visible in the buildings reflected the changes in agricultural processes and practices in this area throughout the period. [Au(adp)]

Archaeological periods represented: PM, MO

OASIS ID :no

(G.93.4852)

AIP database ID: {E374E7DA-5EE1-47C8-B977-C203A637330} Parish: Newland

THE GRANGE, NEWLAND, MALVERN

Building appraisal at The Grange, Newland, Malvern, Worcestershire

Robson-Glyde, S Worcester: Worcestershire County Council Historic Environment & Archaeology Service, 2007, 21pp, colour pls, figs, tabs, refs

Work undertaken by: Worcestershire County Council Historic Environment & Archaeology Service The survey was of a small brick built structure to the rear of The Grange. It was constructed of red brick with segmental arch head window and door openings accentuated with arches of blue brick headers. This building had appeared to be a kiln due its saddle louvre and vented ceiling. A number of anomalies suggested that the building may not have been a kiln but could have a domestic function associated with The Grange farmhouse. [Au(adp)]

Archaeological periods represented: PM

OASIS ID :no

(G.93.4853) SO79774845 AIP database ID: {07357B40-37AC-4A96-85F8-A9A2D8D788A8} Postal Code: WR13 5AX Parish: Newland THE GRANGE, NEWLAND, MALVERN Building Appraisal at The Grange, Newland, Malvern, Worcestershire Robson-Glyde, S Worcester : Worcestershire County Council Historic Environment & Archaeology Service, 2007, 26pp, colour pls, figs, tabs, refs Work undertaken by: Worcestershire County Council Historic Environment & Archaeology Service

Archaeological periods represented: PM

A building survey was made of The Grange. [Au(adp)]

Postal Code: WR15 8QY

SO79774845

Postal Code: WR13 5AX

SO65106517

OASIS ID :no

Worcester

(G.93.4854)

AIP database ID: {AA402653-3EDD-4FC6-B453-74D605FE713A}

Parish: Cathedral Ward 53 & 54 BROAD STREET, WORCESTER

Building Recording. 53 & 54 Broad Street, Worcester

Lacey, C Goring on Thames : The Historical Environment Consultancy, 2007, 64pp, colour pls, figs, tabs, refs

Work undertaken by: The Historical Environment Consultancy

At 53 and 54 Broad Street were two buildings that had been extensively modified over the course of their existence. A chemist's shop existed at 53 for at least 70 years, whilst 54 was a wine merchant's shop for at least 102 years. Many original features were retained in the buildings, although this was not necessarily due to the longevity of the businesses. The façade of No 53 was dated at c. 1820, however, this was found to be erroneous as it was a direct copy of a 1907 photograph of 52 Broad Street. [Au(adp)]

SMR primary record number: 101597 *Archaeological periods represented:* PM

OASIS ID :No

Wychavon

(G.93.4855)

AIP database ID: {ECDBD1E8-779B-4DFA-8CA7-0F9EAFFB7BCC} Parish: Crowle

SO92975631

Postal Code: WR7 4AH

THE MORDAUNTS, CROWLE

The Mordaunts, Crowle, Worcestershire. Historic Building Recording and Analysis Lobb, MEdgbaston : Birmingham Archaeology, 2007, 53pp, colour pls, figs, tabs, refs

Work undertaken by: Birmingham Archaeology The work was carried out as part of a proposal to convert the unused farm buildings to residential accommodation. The group of buildings, which included a Grade II Listed barn, were found to have dated from the seventeenth century onwards, with the large barn possibly incorporating part of an earlier timber-framed aisled barn. The site also included a late seventeenth or early eighteenth century upper cruck building, which were comparatively rare in an agricultural context in Worcestershire.

Significantly all timber-framed buildings encountered on site were constructed from elm. It was proposed, given the possible presence of an aisled barn, that below ground archaeological investigation take place prior to any ground works, in an attempt to locate the footings of the sill-beams or outer walls of the aisles of the building. [Au(abr)]

Archaeological periods represented: PM

OASIS ID :birmingh2-28482

(G.93.4856) AIP database ID: {DF1BDB83-E527-498E-9271-6F41208D1549} Parish: Eckington **NAFFORD BANK FARM, ECKINGTON, PERSHORE** *Photographic Record of Nafford Bank Farm, Eckington, Pershore* Tipton, H A Hereford : H A Tipton, 2007, 9pp, colour pls *Work undertaken by:* H A Tipton A photographic survey was carried out of the building. [AIP]

Archaeological periods represented: MO

SO93374162

Postal Code: WR10 3DH

SO84805490

Postal Code: WR1 3LS

Archaeological Investigations Project 2007

Building Recording

Version 4.1 OASIS ID :no

(G.93.4857) AIP database ID: {884EB18B-BDA7-4919-8FD8-8A1111374EF2} Parish: Himbleton FARM BUILDINGS AT HIMBLETON MANOR Historic Building Recording at Farm Buildings at Himbleton Manor, Worcestershire

Mercian Archaeology Worcester : Mercian Archaeology, 2007, 48pp, colour pls, figs, tabs, refs

Work undertaken by: Mercian Archaeology The historic building recording exercise determined that the planned farm-buildings complex dated from 1868, with further building and modification after 1900. The farm specialised in fruit and possibly honey production, with the buildings designed especially for this purpose. This was considered rare as usually farms diversified, carrying out both agricultural and horticultural practices. [Au(adp)]

Archaeological periods represented: PM

OASIS ID :no

(G.93.4858) SO87744703 AIP database ID: {DD9085BF-401B-406B-9A84-46D43E8233DA} Parish: Pirton Postal Code: WR8 9EF THE COACH HOUSE, PIRTON GRANGE NURSING HOME, WORCESTER ROAD, PIRTON The Coach House, Pirton Grange Nursing Home, Worcester Road, Pirton. Plans and Photographs r3architects ltd Rickmansworth: r3architects ltd, 2007, 17pp, colour pls, figs Work undertaken by: r3architects ltd A photographic record of the building was carried out. [AIP]

Archaeological periods represented: PM

OASIS ID :no

Wyre Forest

(G.93.4859) AIP database ID: {40FFAAD5-B714-4846-9C4E-B36DAFD52EFE} Parish: Chaddesley Corbett

Postal Code: DY10 4QL

SO89657455

BLUNTINGTON FARM HOUSE, CHADDESLEY CORBETT

Bluntington Farm House, Chaddesley Corbett, Worcestershire. Historic Building Recording and **Interpretation**

Hewitson, C Edgbaston : Birmingham Archaeology, 2007, 46pp, colour pls, figs, tabs, refs Work undertaken by: Birmingham Archaeology

A measured survey of the timber-frame, plans and a photographic survey of the building were made, together with a written description of the existing structure. Historical research and map regression analysis was undertaken confirming the 17th century date of the house. The timber-frame survived throughout much of the house but was in need of repair and conservation. Alteration to the internal areas of the house had been limited and the house maintained substantial elements of the original layout as well as the overall character of the building. The original layout conformed to a two-cell main range and northern wing. The north wing displayed decorative ashlar sandstone around the ground floor whilst the remainder of the original build was in square timber-frames, four panels high. Later alterations included 18th century replacement of the wattle and daub with brick nogging and the addition of 19th century brick-built extensions to the west. [Au]

Archaeological periods represented: PM

OASIS ID :birmingh2-36121

SO94985861

Postal Code: WR9 7LE

(G.93.4860)

AIP database ID: {518ED7FD-EBAE-4B0F-9CC7-0300AA6164B2}

Parish: Habberley and Blakebrook Ward

SO82157695

Postal Code: DY11 6AG

BLAKEBROOK HOUSE, MASON ROAD, KIDDERMINSTER Building Recording. Blakebrook House, Mason Road, Kidderminster

Gilbert, N Worcester : Worcestershire County Council Historic Environment & Archaeology Service, 2007, 4pp, pls, figs, refs

Work undertaken by: Worcestershire County Council Historic Environment & Archaeology Service This work was undertaken as part of the Historic Kidderminster project. Blakebrook House was one of the finest and largest of the lost mansions of Kidderminster, home to some of the town's most prominent citizens. The use of the house was unknown since 1926, when it fell into disrepair. It was gone well before 1955 when a police station was opened on the site. [Au(adp)]

Archaeological periods represented: PM

OASIS ID :No